
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
16 August 2017 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Thursday 24 August 2017 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22. 
  

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note any apologies. 
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2017 
(previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 6 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA:  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
  

Public Document Pack



 

6.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION:  
 

7.   47 BROOMHILLS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 1RE - 6/2017/0492/EM - 
ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION (Pages 5 - 38) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
erection of a single storey rear extension. 
 

8.   3 DIGSWELL HOUSE MEWS, MONKS RISE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7AT 
- 6/2017/0141/EM - RETENTION OF INTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND ROOF 
LIGHT (Pages 39 - 58) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
retention of internal alterations and a roof light. 
 

9.   311 KNIGHTSFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7NJ - 6/2017/0813/EM -  
ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION (Pages 59 - 72) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
erection of a single storey rear extension. 
 

10.   60 KIRKLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 7RD - 6/2016/2572/EM - 
FORMATION OF HARDSTANDING (Pages 73 - 82) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
formation of hardstanding. 
 

11.   UPDATE ON PROGRESS WITH ARBITRATION CASES (Pages 83 - 96) 
 

 Report to update Panel members on the status of arbitration cases that were put 
before the Panel on 15 June 2017. 
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Glick (Chairman) 

J.Beckerman 
M.Birleson 
A.Chesterman 
 

M.Cowan 
T.Mitchinson 
F.Thomson 
 

 
 Councillor M Perkins (Executive member for Planning, Housing and    

                                   Community) 
Executive Board 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact  
Gurdip Paddan 01707 357349 or email: democracy@welhat.gov.uk 



Part I 
Executive Member: Councillor M Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEAL PANEL – 24 AUGUST 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2017/0492/EM 

47 BROOMHILLS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 1RE 

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

APPLICANT: Mr M. Rhodes 

(Haldens) 

1 Background 

1.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
erection of a single storey rear extension. The application (6/2017/0492/EM) 
was refused for the following reason:  

           The proposal, by virtue of its pitched roof design, would not be in keeping with 
the character and appearance of the application property and the surrounding 
properties.  It would fail to represent high quality design, and would be 
detrimental to the amenities and values of the Garden City.  Accordingly, the 
proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme.                

2 Site Description 

2.1 The subject property is a two storey mid-terraced dwelling house. The 
property is situated within a group of eight similarly designed properties 
located on the northern side of Broomhills close to the junction with 
Strawfields. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature.   

 
2.2 Within the terrace in which number 47 is located (numbers 39-55 odd) there 

are two rear extensions within the wider row of terraces located on the 
northern side of Broomhills there are a number of flat roof and conservatory 
type rear extensions.   
 

3 The Proposal 

3.1  The original application sought Estate Management consent for the erection 
of a rear extension with a height of approximately 3.7m, an eaves height of 
approximately 2.3m and a width of approximately 6.1m. Its proposed depth 
was approximately 3.5m. The extension was designed with a solid pitched 
roof with three rooflights. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



4 Relevant Estate Management History 

4.1 Application Number: 6/2016/2738/EM Decision: Granted Decision Date: 
02 March 2017 
Proposal: Erection of new lean-to conservatory to rear of property and 
removal of rear hedge between property no.47 and no.49.  
 

4.2 Application Number: 6/2017/1511/EM Decision: Granted Decision Date: 
11 August 2017 
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension with flat roof. 

 
5 Policy 

5.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

5.2 EM1 – Extensions and Alterations 

6 Discussion 
 
6.1 This is an appeal against the refusal for Estate Management Consent. The 

appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated 
officer’s report for application 6/2017/0492/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.  

 
6.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact the 

development would have on the amenities and values of the subject property 
and the surrounding area of Welwyn Garden City.   

 
6.3     The proposal is for a single storey rear extension designed with a pitched roof.  

Policy EM1 of the Estates Management Scheme outlines that extensions and 
alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the 
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and 
values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of adjoining 
occupiers. Therefore with all applications submitted to the Council an 
assessment is made with regard to the design and appearance of a proposal 
and a judgement in that regard is then made. 

 
6.4 In this instance, whilst there is no objection to the principle of a single storey 

rear extension to the property, the refusal relates specifically to the 
introduction of a full width extension with a pitched roof. In the Garden City 
single storey extensions are generally expected to be designed with a flat roof 
which is there to limit the impact of the development on the rear elevation and 
maintain a consistency with the design and appearance of single storey 
extensions.  Generally, extensions with solid mono-pitch roof forms are not 
consistent with the style of flat roofed single storey extensions which are 
prolific within Welwyn Garden City’s Estates Management areas.  

 
6.5 The front of the properties within Broomhills are characterised by flat-roof 

single storey structures that contribute to the amenities and values of the area 
and the Garden City. The quality of the architecture in this area has largely 
been maintained with flat-roof extensions and additions being a typical 

Page 4



feature. To the rear, numerous flat-roof extensions have been approved and 
there are examples of conservatory type extensions within the local area in 
keeping with the ethos of the Garden City for single storey extensions. 

 
6.6 The terrace in which the property is situated (nos. 39-55 odd) has an exposed 

first floor rear elevation that can be viewed from Herns Way. Single storey 
extensions with pitched roofs could dominate this first floor rear elevation if 
every property carried out such an extension. Sloping roofs of differing pitches 
and design would be much more apparent in the street scene and could erode 
this otherwise unaltered rear view.  On the other hand, single storey 
extensions that generally rise no more than approximately 3.0m in height are 
less apparent and usually remain subordinate to the host dwelling, whilst also 
maintaining the architectural quality and features at first floor.  

 
6.7 The introduction of a full width extension, with a pitched roof, rather than a flat 

roof would represent a more dominating form of development to the rear of 
this row of properties that would be harmful to the amenities and values of the 
property itself and to the wider surrounding area. In addition, it would not 
reflect the design and architectural detailing of the property, which features a 
single storey flat roof element to the front of the property. 

 
6.8 The appellant highlights a rear extension located at number 43 Broomhills. 

This was granted consent in December 2015. He explains that the proposal 
“seeks to match the closet built extension that is a pitched roof and would 
therefore maintain the existing character and appearance of the area”.  

 
6.9 It is appreciated that an application for a single storey rear extension designed 

with a pitched roof was approved at number 43 Broomhills.  However, this is 
an anomaly and all other single storey extensions within the terrace and 
adjacent terraces on this side of Broomhills are flat roof or conservatory type 
extensions, typical of the Garden City. The extension at number 43 is at odds 
with the majority of other extensions, which are designed with a flat roof which 
is consistent with the requirements of the Estates Management Scheme 
(EMS).  As a result, this extension unfortunately stands out as an incongruous 
addition which could be considered to be harmful to the EMS and 
demonstrates why such extensions should not be approved. Therefore whilst 
that approved extension has been approved, it should not be repeated again, 
which would further harm and erode the EMS.  The case officer viewed the 
extension at number 43. However as referred to above, it provides no weight 
in this application, especially given the predominance of flat roof single storey 
extensions in the nearby vicinity of the site.  

 
6.10 The appellant also makes reference to another rear extension with a pitched 

roof at number 20 Windhill. This extension at number 20 Windhill is some 
distance from the appeal property. Whilst it is appreciated that it is evident 
within the streetscape its solid sloping roof dominates the rear elevation and is 
out of keeping within the terrace. It would not be viewed in the same context 
as the appeal property, given its location, so it is also given no weight in any 
assessment.  

 

Page 5



6.11 The appellant states that “the rear of the property where the appellant’s 
proposal is sited, backs onto an area of dense vegetation and trees, before 
meeting the road, ‘Herns Way’. The proposal cannot be easily viewed from 
any surrounding public vantage point”  

 
6.12 It is considered that although there is vegetation to the rear of the site along 

the public footpath on Herns Way, views of the rear of the terrace are 
possible. These views would be even more evident in the winter months when 
the trees are not in leaf. In any event, even though views of the rear may be 
obscured for part of the year by the trees, this does not overcome the 
identified harm to the property or terrace as a whole.  

 
6.13 The appellant mentions the impact on neighbouring occupiers. However, the 

proposal was not refused in relation to the impact on neighbouring occupiers 
and no objections are raised by others in this regard. 

 
6.14 It is noted that the appellant has submitted an application for a single storey 

extension with a flat roof. This application has now been determined 
favourably and demonstrates that there is no compelling reason why the 
development cannot progress with a flat roof rear extension.   

 
8 Conclusion  
 
8.1 The proposal for a full width extension, with a sloping roof, rather than a flat 

roof would represent a more dominating form of development to the rear of 
this row of properties. The proposal is not reflective of the character and 
appearance of the dwelling or the terrace and would have a detrimental 
impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area and the Garden 
City as a whole. This conflicts with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme. 

 
9 Recommendation 
 
9.1 That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal. 
 
 
Sarah Madyausiku (Development Management) 
Date: 02 August 2017 
 
Background Information 
Appendix 1: Appellant’s Statement (and attachments) 
Appendix 2: Officer Report 
 

Page 6



 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Sir/Madam, 

Re: Appeal Regarding Refusal of Estate Management Application 6/2017/0492/EM 

I am writing to appeal the refusal of the Estate Management application to build a single storey rear 

extension at 47 Broomhills, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1RE.  I believe that the grounds for this appeal 

is precedent. 

The case officer’s report and the subsequent response to the appellant’s complaint regarding the 

decision to refuse the application is the focus of the following appeal. 

Within the report, the case officer described the characteristics of the site and surroundings as only 

being flat roofed structures.  However, whilst this is true of the front of the properties, this is not the 

case for the rear of the properties on Broomhills and adjacent streets.  Specifically, no mention is 

made in the report, of the two existing pitched roof extensions in the immediate vicinity. As it is 

clear from the report that the proposed pitched roof is the sole reason for the refusal, this appeal 

will attempt to describe how the proposed pitched roof would be compliant with Estate 

Management Policy EM1, by being consistent with the neighbouring pitched roof extension, and also 

by having minimal impact due to the location and context of the site. I have attached relevant 

documents which have been referenced as part of this appeal. 

In the case officer’s report it states that: 

‘The proposal, by virtue of its pitched roof design, would not be in keeping with the character 

and appearance of the application property and the surrounding properties (1). It would fail 

to represent high quality design, and would be detrimental  to the amenities and values of 

the Garden City (2). Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 

Management Scheme.’ 

 (1) The proposal, by virtue of its pitched roof design, would not be in keeping with the character 
and appearance of the application property and the surrounding properties. 
 
There are two existing examples of single storey pitched roof extensions that have been built in the 
immediate vicinity: the property at 43 Broomhills (Application no. 6/2015/2259/EM) and the 
property at 20 Windhill (Application no.W6/2015/0083/EM). 
 
The appellant has made a proposal to match the pitched roof extension at 43 Broomhills which was 
only approved in December 2015 and has now been constructed. The proposal would match this 
approved extension including size, roof pitch and materials. Please refer to drawing B4: ‘Existing and 
Proposed Rear Elevations’. 
 
It is of note that the report for this proposal (43 Broomhills), in commenting on Policy EM1, stated 
the opposite to the response to the appellant’s proposal, despite the proposal being only 2 houses 
away and of almost identical appearance and design: 
 

‘The proposed single storey rear extension at a depth of 3.5m and a height of 3.7m lowering 
to an eaves height of 2.53m is of a size, scale and form that would respect the character and 
appearance of the dwelling to be extended and the surrounding area. 
 
In terms of design and siting, the development is considered to be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the property and within the context of the architectural design 
and visual appearance of the surrounding area and is not considered to result in any 
additional or harmful impact on the character and appearance of the Welwyn Garden City 

Page 9



Conservation Area. 
 
In summary, the extension would have an acceptable relationship with the adjoining and 
surrounding residential properties in respect of its impact on the amenity of adjoining 
occupiers and complies with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.’ 

 
No justification was provided in the report or complaint response as to why these two reports clearly 
contradict each other relating to matching proposals 2 houses away from each other. 
 
The front of the properties within Broomhills are characterised by flat-roof single storey structures 
that contribute to the amenities and values of the area and the Garden City. The flat roof structures 
are clearly visible and form what is ‘the public street scene’. However, at the rear of the properties 
within Broomhills, the extensions and conservatories cannot be easily seen and are characterised by 
inconsistencies in style, scale and form. The proposal seeks to match the closest built extension that 
is a pitched roof and would therefore maintain the existing character and appearance of the area, 
even though it is not clearly visible from the public domain. It should also be noted that the terrace 
does not have a consistent style of rear extensions and is unlike other areas of Welwyn Garden City’s 
Estates Management areas where flat roofed single storey extensions can be found. It would seem 
that a refusal on the grounds of having a pitched roof alone, therefore, is unreasonable. 
It is believed that the approval and subsequent construction of the pitched roof single storey 
extension at 43 Broomhills (Application no. 6/2015/2259/EM) sets a precedent which the proposal 
now seeks to follow.   
 
(2) Residential amenities and values of the Garden City. 
Given the very close proximity of the extension at 43 Broomhills to the proposed extension, the 
report of Application no. 6/2015/2259/EM (re: 43 Broomhills) is directly relevant to the appellants 
proposal, where it states that: 
 

 ‘The rear gardens are north facing and therefore sunlight is already reduced due to the 
orientation of the properties. The proposed extension is considered of a depth and height 
that would not result in any amenity implications in the form of overbearing, loss of light or 
outlook and complies with the guidance contained in the Council’s adopted SDG Residential 
Design Guide (2005). 
 
For the reasons outlined above, the proposal is considered to have a satisfactory relationship 
with the adjoining properties and is in accordance with the relevant policies outlined above. 
 
In summary, the extension would have an acceptable relationship with the adjoining and 
surrounding residential properties in respect of its impact on the amenity of adjoining 
occupiers and complies with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.’ 

 
In addition, the rear of the property where the appellant’s proposal is sited, backs onto an area of 

dense vegetation and trees, before meeting the road, ‘Herns Way’. The proposal cannot be easily 

viewed from any surrounding public vantage point and therefore has minimal detrimental impact on 

the character and appearance of the street scene and the wider amenities and values of the area. 

(Please refer to photographs A ‘View of Rear of 47 and 43 Broomhills from Public Footpath on Herns 

Way ’; B ‘View of Rear of 47 and 43 Broomhills from within Vegetation Area’, both of which 

demonstrate the very limited views of the proposal from the public domain.  Photograph C ‘Herns 

Way’ demonstrates the context of the vegetation/trees in relation to the public highway)  It is 

believed that the values of the Garden City would be upheld in this case.  It is also of note that the 

approved, pitched roof rear extension at 20 Windhill, unlike the current proposal, is clearly visible 

Page 10



from the public domain (see attached Photographs D and E: ‘Rear Extension at 20 Windhill as viewed 

from Broomhills’) and was still deemed by the Estate Management Department to be acceptable in 

appearance. 

 
Following discussions with neighbours it has been identified that the proposal would not have a 
negative impact on private amenity and therefore there are no objections to the proposal. In the 
planning officer’s report (6-2017-0492-EM) it is noted that:  
 

‘the proposal would not be overbearing to neighbouring dwellings’  
 
and, regarding the form of the proposals:  
 

‘The proposal would not adversely affect the light amenity, privacy or increase overlooking 
between the host dwelling and neighbouring properties’.  

 
The proposal is north facing and as such, it’s form, scale and position would be overshadowed by the 
host property and surrounding features for most of the day.  
 
As part of the original application process, the appellant viewed the planning approvals of pitched 
roof extensions in the near vicinity and sought to make a proposal that would enhance the 
neighbourhood and meet approval by the Estate Management Scheme. It was very unexpected, 
therefore, that the proposal was then refused, particularly when the report made no reference to 
either of the existing extensions at 43 Broomhills or at 20 Windhill, both of which are considered 
very relevant to the application. 
 
A complaint was raised against the refusal but unfortunately the response dated 23 May 2017 
omitted details and explanations as to why these properties were not mentioned in the original 
report, or as to why the justification for the refusal of the appellants proposal entirely contradicted 
the justification for approval of the other two neighbouring applications. In the case officer’s 
response it stated that: 
 

‘It is apparent that the predominant pattern of rear extensions feature flat roofs, which were 
identified by myself on the site visit’  
 

and that  
 

‘the extension at no.43 does not continue the pattern of flat roof additions’.  
 

It was also stated in the case officer’s complaint response that: 
 

‘the case officer needs to make a judgment as to whether or not these existing examples 
alter the character and appearance of the area. It was considered that this example here’ 
(no.43) ‘does not give such strong weight to allow a similar extension at your property 
especially when considering the number of flat roofed extensions within the immediate 
locality.’ 
 

However, it should have been clear to the case officer from the site visit, that within Broomhills the 
terrace of properties numbered 41-55, there is one pitched roof extension, one pitched ridge 
conservatory and no flat roof extensions and therefore clearly no pattern or dominant style. 
 
 

Page 11



Also, although the report states that no.20 Windhill is:  
 

‘some distance from your property and is not seen within the same context.’ , 
 
the appellant would like to make note that the extension at no.20 Windhill is within the immediate 
vicinity in that it is sited on Broomhills (albeit on its side elevation).  This property has the same 
architectural layout and features of the estate and houses on Broomhills which makes it a valid 
comparison in respect to character, appearance and public amenity.  It is also of note, as stated 
above,  that this rear extension, unlike the current proposal, is clearly visible from the public domain. 
 
In summary, this appeal is based on the precedent set by the Estate Management Department when 
it gave approval to two other almost identical proposals in close proximity to that of the appellant’s 
proposal.  It is also based on the Estate Management Department’s justification of non-compliance 
with Policy EM1 relating to the appellant’s proposal, precisely contradicting their justification of 
compliance with Policy EM1 in regards to two other matching proposals in the immediate vicinity.   
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Michael Rhodes 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Estate Management Report:  
Application Number 6/2017/0492/EM - 47 Brownhills, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1RE 
 
Drawings: 
B1 47 Broomhills Existing Plans 
B2 47 Broomhills Proposed Plans 
B3 47 Broomhills Proposed Block Plan 
B4 43-49 Broomhills Existing and Proposed Rear Elevations 
 
Photograph A - ‘View of Rear of 47 and 43 Broomhills from Public Footpath on Herns Way  
Photograph B - ‘View of Rear of 47 and 43 Broomhills from within Vegetation Area’,  
Photograph C -  ‘Herns Way’  
Photographs D and E -  ‘Rear Extension at 20 Windhill as viewed from Broomhills’ 
 
Other Relevant Estate Management Reports attached: 
Application Number 6/2015/2259/EM - 43 Brownhills, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1RE 
Application Number W6/2015/0083/EM - 20 Windhill, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1RJ 

Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Photograph A – View of Rear of 47 and 43 Broomhills from Footpath 

 

Photograph B – View of Rear of 47 and 43 Broomhills within Vegetation Area 

Page 21



 

Photograph C – Herns Way 

 

Photograph D – 20 Windhill 

Page 22



 

Photograph E – 20 Windhill 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number W6/2015/0083/EM 
 
Description of Development Retention of single storey rear extension 
 
Recommendation APPROVE  
 
Site Designation The site lies within the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management 
Scheme 
 
Relevant history 
None  
 
Consultations 
None  
 
Neighbour representations 

None received    Object    Support 
 
Town / Parish representations 

 None received    Object   Support 
 
Relevant Policies 

 EM1   EM2   EM3 
Others          
 
Main issues 
 
Would the proposal be in keeping with the overall design, appearance, 
materials and architectural detailing of the existing property? 

 Yes  No  N/A 
Comment:       
 
Would the proposal have an impact on the amenities and values of the area? 

 Yes   No   N/A 
Comment: Though it would be preferred that the development had a flat roof, given 
the shallow pitch of the roof and having regard to the limited architectural merit of the 
host dwelling, it is considered that, on balance, the proposal is acceptable.  
 
Would the development maintain the amenity of adjoining and future 
occupiers?  (E.g. privacy, outlook, loss of light etc.) 

  Yes   No  N/A 
Comment:       
 
Vehicle Hardstandings Only 
 
Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?   

  Yes   No  N/A 
Comment:       
 

Page 25



 
Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the 
hardstanding be removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.) 

  Yes   No  N/A 
Comment:       
 
If not in accordance with the policy are there any other considerations which 
warrant a decision other than refusal 
 
It is noted that the applicant has not provided a side elevation of the existing 
development. However, as this is a retrospective application, following a site visit it 
was considered that, in this particular instance, there is sufficient information 
provided to make an informed decision.  
 
Conditions 
 
EM01  – 1. This consent shall expire three years after the date hereof (or such other 
extended date as the council may agree) unless the works hereby approved shall be 
completed before that date. 
 
2. All works carried out in pursuance of this consent shall be and remain part of the 
Premises and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the conveyance in all 
respects as if such works had at all times formed part of the Premises. 
 
3. This consent or copy hereof shall be annexed to the Conveyance. 
 
4. There shall be no encroachment over the boundary of the plot either above or 
below ground level, nor any interference with the foundations of the adjoining 
property without the agreement of the adjoining owner or lessee. 
 
5. This consent now issued is given by the council only in accordance with the 
requirements of the Management Scheme/Conveyance or Leasehold Covenants. 
 
REASON: To comply with the requirements of the Estate Management Scheme 
 
6. The development/works shall not be maintained other than in accordance with the 
approved plans and details: Maintained in accordance with plans and details: Block 
Plan (scale of 1:500) & Site Location Plan (scale of 1:1250) & Existing Rear 
Elevations & SKI Rev. B & SK3 Rev. B & Existing Layout Floor Level Rev 1 & SK2 
Rev. B & SK4 Rev. B received and dated 28 January 2015 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved drawings and any changes must be agreed in advance in writing by the 
Council. 
 
 
Signature ______________________________ 
 
 
Date __________________________________ 

Page 26



 
 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number 6/2015/2259/EM – 43 Brownhills, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1RE 

Description of Development: Single storey rear conservatory

The proposal seeks consent for a lean to single storey rear extension forming the full width 
of the main dwellinghouse measuring a depth of 3.5m, a height of 3.7m and an eaves height 
of 3.53m

Recommendation:  Approval with conditions

Site Designation:
The site lies within the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme and Conservation 
Area.

Relevant History
None

Consultations
None

Neighbour representations
None received:

Town / Parish representations
Support

Relevant Policies
EM1  EM2  EM3

Others    None

Main issues
The main planning issues with regard to this application are: 

-  Maintaining and enhancing the character and appearance of the property, the
 surrounding area and the amenities and values of the Welwyn Garden City.
 (Estate Management Policies EM1 - Extensions and Alterations.)

-  the impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties

Would the proposal be in keeping with the overall design, appearance, materials and 
architectural detailing of the existing property?

Yes No N/A

Comment: 
The proposed single storey rear extension at a depth of 3.5m and a height of 3.7m lowering 
to an eaves height of 2.53m is of a size, scale and form that would respect the character and 
appearance of the dwelling to be extended and the surrounding area.

The windows to the proposed extension are considered of a satisfactory design, alignment 
and siting, in proportion with the amount of brickwork and in character with the existing 
windows to the property.

In terms of design and siting, the development is considered to be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the property and within the context of the architectural design 

Page 29



and visual appearance of the surrounding area and is not considered to result in any 
additional or harmful impact on the character and appearance of the Welwyn Garden City 
Conservation Area.

In summary, the proposed development is considered to maintain and enhance the 
amenities and values of the Garden City and accords with Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.

Would the proposal have an impact on the amenity of adjoining and future occupiers 
of the area?

Yes  No  N/A

Comment:
No. 41 is sited to the west of the site and has not been extended to the rear.  The west flank 
of the proposed single storey rear extension is to be built up to the shared boundary with no. 
41 and at a depth of 3.5m and a height of 3.7m lowering to 2.53m it is not considered that 
the development would result in any unreasonable loss of amenity in the form of an 
overbearing impact, loss of light or outlook..  

No. 45 is sited to the east of the application site and has no rear extensions. The proposed 
extension is to be built up to the shared boundary with no. 45. The rear gardens are north 
facing and therefore sunlight is already reduced due to the orientation of the properties. The 
proposed extension is considered of a depth and height that would not result in any amenity 
implications in the form of overbearing, loss of light or outlook and complies with the 
guidance contained in the Council’s adopted SDG Residential Design Guide (2005).

For the reasons outlined above, the proposal is considered to have a satisfactory relationship
with the adjoining properties and is in accordance with the relevant policies outlined above.

In summary, the extension would have an acceptable relationship with the adjoining and 
surrounding residential properties in respect of its impact on the amenity of adjoining 
occupiers and complies with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Vehicle Hardstandings Only

Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?  

 Yes  No N/A

Comment:
The development would not result in the loss of any front garden area to the property.

Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (E.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.)

 Yes  No N/A

Comment:
The development does not result in any alterations to the front forecourt of the property or to 
the front boundary of the property.  

CONCLUSION
For all the reasons considered above, the proposed development is considered to maintain 
and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City and is therefore in compliance 
with the Estate Management Scheme.

Page 30



Conditions

1. EM01  A – D. 

2. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in accordance  
with the  deposited plans:  Damien Poulter Drg Nos P01 Rev A & E01 received 
5/11/15

3. Matching materials 

Signature ______________________________
Date __________________________________

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2017/0492/EM
Location: 47 Broomhills Welwyn Garden City AL7 1RE
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension with the installation of 3 

rooflights.
Officer:  Mrs S Madyausiku

Recommendation: Refused

6/2017/0492/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The subject property is a two storey mid-terraced dwelling house. The property 
is situated within a group of eight similar properties located on the northern side 
of Broomhills close to the junction with Strawfields. The surrounding area is 
predominantly residential in nature. 

The applicant seeks Estate Management consent for the erection of a rear 
extension with a maximum height of 3.7m, and an eaves height of 2.3m and a 
width of 6.1m. It would have a depth of 3.5m. The extension would have a solid 
sloping roof with three rooflights.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history
Application Number: 6/2016/1203/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 10 August 2016
Proposal: Formation of vehicle hardstanding

Application Number: 6/2016/2738/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 02 March 2017
Proposal: Erection of new lean-to conservatory to rear of property and removal 
of hedge between property no.47 and no.49.

Consultations
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None

Consultee 
responses

1. Councillor Mike Larkins None

2. Councillor Barbara Fitzsimon None

3. Councillor Nathaniel Chapman None

Relevant Policies

Page 33



2 of 3

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Does the design (form, size, scale, siting) and character (appearance within the streetscene) 
maintain and/or enhance the amenities and values of the area?

Yes No N/A
Comment (if required):      Policy EM1 states:
‘Extensions and alterations  to existing properties will only be allowed if they  are in keeping with the 
design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing building and do not 
have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the residential 
amenity of adjoining occupiers.’

The front of the properties within Broomhills are characterised by flat-roof single storey structures 
that contribute to the amenities and values of the area and the Garden City. The quality of the 
architecture in this area has largely been maintained with flat-roof extensions and additions being a 
typical feature. To the rear, flat-roof, full width extensions have been approved and there are 
examples of conservatory type extensions within the terrace and within Broomhills as a whole. 

It is considered that the introduction of a full width extension, with a sloping roof, rather than a flat 
roof would represent a more dominating form of development that would be harmful to the amenities 
and values of the surrounding area. The solid materials used in the construction of the roof 
exacerbate this dominant structure. Whilst there is a consent for an extension at the property 
(granted in February 2017 ref: 6/2016/2738/EM ) that featured a sloping roof, the extension was half 
width and was of a lightweight material, having a glass roof, rather than a solid roof. 

The proposed extension would fail to enhance the appearance of the existing property given its 
pitched roof design with a solid roof form. The extension would appear out of keeping with the 
property and the surrounding properties and form an overly dominant form to the rear of the dwelling 
which is unacceptable. 

It is considered that the proposal, by virtue of its pitched roof design, fails to maintain and enhance 
the amenities and values of the Garden City. 

Does the development minimise impact on neighbours?
Yes No N/A

Comment (if required):    The proposal would not adversely affect the light amenity, privacy or 
increase overlooking between the host dwelling and neighbouring properties. The proposal would 
not be overbearing to neighbouring dwellings. 

Vehicle Hardstandings Only.  Sections (a) and (b) completed only if hardstanding proposed
(a) Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?  

Yes No 
Comment (if required):      N/A

(b) Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.)

 Yes  No N/A
Comment (if required):      

Any other considerations 
None

Conclusion
The proposal is not reflective of the character and appearance of the dwelling or the terrace and 
would have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area and the 
Garden City as a whole. This conflicts with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Page 34



3 of 3

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposal, by virtue of its pitched roof design, would not be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the application property and the surrounding 
properties.  It would fail to represent high quality design, and would be detrimental 
to the amenities and values of the Garden City.  Accordingly, the proposal would be 
contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

B1 1 Existing Plans & Elevations 14 March 2017
B2 Proposed Plans & Elevations 14 March 2017
B3 Proposed Block Plan 16 March 2017

Informatives:

1. Please note that this decision does not refer to the shed shown in the rear garden.  
If a shed is proposed then a separate Estate Management application will be 
required in that regard.

Determined By:

Mrs S Smith
5 May 2017

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Part 1 
Executive Member: Councillor M Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEAL PANEL – 24 AUGUST 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2017/0141/EM 

3 DIGSWELL HOUSE MEWS, MONKS RISE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7AT 

RETENTION OF INTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND ROOFLIGHT 

APPLICANT: Mr N Pyne-Gilbert 

(Sherrards) 

1 Background 

1.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
retention of internal alterations and a roof light. The application 
(6/2017/0141/EM) was refused for the following reason:  

1. ‘The siting and appearance of the roof light has an adverse and 
uncharacteristic affect on the front roof slope of the property that 
disrupts the roof line of the terraced row which is otherwise intact.  
Given the visibility of the roof slope in the wider area it is detrimental to 
the character and appearance of the application property and the wider 
street scene. The works fail to maintain or enhance the values and 
amenities of Welwyn Garden City contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.’ 

 
2 Site Description 

2.1 The appeal site is located north-west of the centre of Welwyn Garden City and 
comprises of a mid-terraced two storey cottage style property. The property is 
located within a cluster of properties within Digswell House Mews and are of a 
period style. This collection of properties are not a typical style of property 
seen within Welwyn Garden City. The immediate street scene is residential in 
character with properties similar and of the same architectural design to the 
host property. It is considered that the general appearance of the properties 
have remained unaltered, particularly to the front elevation.   

  
2.2 Whilst Fern Grove is to the rear of the application site, the site itself is 

accessed from Monks Rise. 
 

3 The Proposal 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



3.1  The original application sought Estate Management consent for the retention 
of internal alterations and the installation of a roof light. 

3.2 The roof light would be sited to the front elevation of the property and would 
provide light into the third bedroom created as a result of the loft conversion. 
The roof light is of a conservation style.  

4 Estate Management History 

4.1 None 
 
5 Policy 

5.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

5.2 EM1 – Extensions and Alterations  

7  Discussion 
 
7.1 This is an appeal against the refusal for Estate Management Consent. The 

appellant’s Design Statement is attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated 
officer’s report for application 6/2017/0141/EM, is attached at Appendix 2. 
Additionally the plans associated with the original planning permission are 
attached at Appendix 3.  

 
7.2  The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact on the 

amenities and values of the surrounding area. The impact on the residential 
amenity of adjoining occupiers is judged to be acceptable.   

 
7.3 Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) refers to proposals for 

extensions and alterations, the policy clearly states that extensions and 
alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the 
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and 
values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of adjoining 
occupiers.  

 
7.4 Additionally in order to be able to manage the large amount of requests for 

roof alterations and energy efficiency measures, following public consultation 
the Council has approved a Policy approach within the Welwyn Garden Estate 
Management Scheme Areas to deal with roof alterations and this is as 
follows: 

 

 Estate Management Consent will only be granted for energy efficiency 
measures and other roof alterations where they are sited on the rear or 
side roof slope and are sited to minimise the effect on the external 
appearance of the building. 
 

 Estate Management Consent will only be granted if the proposed 
alteration, when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does 

Page 38



not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the 
street scene and the wider amenities and values of the area. 
 

 Exceptions to this Policy approach will apply where, in the judgement of 
the case officer the architectural design and style of an individual property 
or the wider character of the area means that an alteration on a principal 
roof slope of a property would not have a detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the street scene and wider amenities and 
values of the area. 

 

 In all cases the decision maker will continue to weigh the environmental 
benefits of energy efficiency measures against the visual impact. 

 
This above approach applies to the installation of new chimneys, roof lights, 
dormer windows, solar PV, thermal equipment, wind turbines, flues, sun 
pipes, aerials and antennas and any other alterations to the roof of a property 
covered by the Estate Management Scheme. 

 
7.5 The appeal dwelling is located within a row of terrace, cottage style dwellings 

situated around a pedestrian courtyard. The principle elevation is considered 
to be that which faces into the courtyard as typical domestic features can be 
seen, those being the main door and porch. Furthermore other properties 
within the terrace also have these features. 

 
7.6 Within the appellant’s appeal statement it is argued that the elevation in which 

the roof light has been installed is in fact the rear elevation.  However the 
domestic features seen within this elevation and the proposed floor plans 
show that this is the only ground floor door into the dwelling and therefore it is 
considered that this elevation is for all purposes the main elevation. 
Additionally the original planning permission for this development shows that 
the elevation fronting the courtyard and to which the roof light has been 
installed is the front elevation. Therefore, whilst the appellant has not provided 
evidence to demonstrate that this is the rear elevation, based on the 
information the Council hold, it is considered reasonable to reach this 
conclusion.   

 
7.8 Nevertheless, the proposed roof light would require consent regardless of 

which elevation it is located on. In this instance the roof light is set centrally 
within the roof slope and is readily visible within the Mews complex itself and 
from the wider public realm within Fern Grove. The roof light is considered to 
disrupt the roof slope and the wider roof line of this terrace row of properties, 
which retain their original period character. The appearance of the roof light, 
regardless that it is of a ‘conservation style’ is out of keeping with the design, 
appearance and contrary to the original architectural detailing used in the 
existing buildings.  

  
7.9 The appellant has stated that there are several other properties within The 

Mews that have roof lights facing towards the road. It is assumed that these 
are those that face onto Fern Grove. The appellant has stated that;- ‘No.4 and 
the house on the left as you enter Fern Grove have ‘velux windows facing 

Page 39



towards the road’. It is acknowledged that the floor plans would demonstrate 
that the appeal dwelling also has two roof lights located in the rear elevation 
fronting Fern Grove. Whilst it would appear that those roof lights located 
within the properties in the Mews complex featured within the original planning 
permission, it does not necessarily set a precedent for additional roof lights to 
be installed, especially if they are considered to have a detrimental impact on 
the values and amenities of the Estate Management area, as this could then 
set a precedent for similar works to be allowed to other properties and 
therefore would cause further detrimental impact on the values and amenities 
of the Estate Management area. In any event those existing permitted roof 
lights are to the rear elevation, unlike the proposed roof light which is located 
on the front roof slope of the appeal property where the roof form is 
unchanged and maintains the original character and form of those original 
buildings.   

 
7.10 The proposed roof light dominates the front facing roof slope and would be 

readily visible within the public realm having a detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the area and the resultant appearance would not 
be in line with the values and amenities of the Garden City, contrary to Policy 
EM1.  

  
8 Conclusion  
 
8.1 The proposal, by virtue of the siting and appearance of the roof light, would 

have a detrimental impact on the appearance of the front facing roof slope, 
disrupting the undisturbed roof form seen to this main elevation. The roof light 
is readily visible from with Digswell Mews and Fern Grove and as such is 
considered to have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of 
the application property and the wider street scene. Therefore the proposal 
will detrimentally impact upon the visual amenity of the area. Accordingly the 
proposal fails to comply with the provisions of Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

 
9 Recommendation 
 
9.1 That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal. 
 
 
10 Informative 
 
10.1 The appellant should be aware that the dwelling does not benefit from 

permitted development rights and therefore the insertion of a roof light would 
also require planning permission. 

 
 
Rachael Collard (Development Management) 
Date 31 July 2017 
 
Background Information 
Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal 

Page 40



Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report 
Appendix 3: Original Decision Notice and plans approved for the conversion of the 

existing buildings to create 9 new residential units C6/1985/0422/FP 
 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Emma Graham

From: Emma Graham on behalf of Planning Appeals

Sent: 07 June 2017 14:18

To: Emma Graham

Subject: FW: 3 Digswell House Mews Roof light. ( Alleged breach)  ref ENF/2017/0101

 4  ST  MARY’S  CLOSE
 WELWYN
 HERTS.

  AL6 9RL

  

  01438 715379
 07909916077

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
The Campus 
Welwyn Garden City
Herts
AL8 6AE

27 May 2017

Att: Megan Saunders

Dear Megan Saunders,

Re: 3 Digswell House Mews Roof Light
 APPEAL against alleged breach of estate management scheme.

I am in receipt of your letter of the 18th May regarding the roof light that has been installed at the above address and wish to 
appeal against the refusal, on the following grounds.

The property in question has been extensively renovated due to the original poor state of repair, when we took over the 
property in August 2016.

We have put a loft conversion in the property and the design included the installation of a conservation style window to give
some natural light to the room, which would otherwise have no light at all.

Our architect, Mr Alan Duncan checked with the Council if a rooflight needed planning permission and it was confirmed by 
Welwyn Hatfield Council that planning permission was not required but Estate Management approval was needed for a roof 
light although it was confirmed that a conservation type window could be fitted to the rear roof of the property. Hence we 
installed a window to the rear of the property.
Although the property faces other properties in the Mews, the front elevation actually faces Fern Grove but the house is 
accessed from the rear of the building, which does not face the street. In which case a roof light is permitted under the 
management scheme. 

It therefore seems a little peculiar to me, having permission refused for something you don’t need permission for.

There are several other properties on that mews estate, such as no4 and the house on the left as you enter fern grove, that 
have Velux windows facing towards the road which obviously have the approval of Welwyn Hatfield Management Scheme 
and I think that sets a precedent.

It is not our intention to breach any regulations but I would be grateful if you could inform me of the best course of action, my 
mobile number is above.
I would be happy to meet you on site to discuss the situation if that would help?

Page 43



2

I am the owner of the property and would be grateful if you would address all future correspondence to my address in 
Welwyn or by this email

I await your reply

Yours sincerely

Nigel Pyne-Gilbert

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
You can report missed bins, abandoned vehicles, fly-tipping, litter, graffiti and flyposting as well as tell us about 
problems with litter and dog bins Online. The information in this email is intended for the named recipients only. 
It may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information is 
legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this email and your reply cannot be guaranteed. 
This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and intellectual property (including 
copyright material). It is only for the use of the addressee(s) in accordance with any instructions contained within 
it. Please treat any personal and sensitivity data that may be contained within this email in accordance with the 
requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998 (the Act). Such data should only be processed and retained where 
there is a legitimate need to do so. Should you have a legitimate need to share this information please make the 
recipient aware of their responsibilities for handling this data in accordance with the Act. If you are not the 
addressee, you are prohibited from copying, forwarding, disclosing, saving or otherwise using it in any way. If 
you receive this email in error, please immediately advise the sender and delete it. Sopra Steria may monitor the 
content of emails within Welwyn Hatfield Council’s network to ensure compliance with the Council’s policies and 
procedures. Emails are susceptible to alteration and their integrity (including origin) cannot be assured. Welwyn 
Hatfield Council and Steria shall not be liable for any modification to a message, or for messages falsely sent. 
The full Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council email disclaimer can be viewed at 
www.welhat.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer. 
 --  

Regards

Alan Duncan
Chartered Architect

56 High Street
Whitwell
Hertfordshire 
SG4 8AG

01438 871542
07733 368478
alan@aland.demon.co.uk

Page 44



3

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
You can report missed bins, abandoned vehicles, fly-tipping, litter, graffiti and flyposting as well as tell us about problems 
with litter and dog bins Online. The information in this email is intended for the named recipients only. It may be subject to 
public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the 
confidentiality of this email and your reply cannot be guaranteed. This email and any attachments may contain confidential 
information and intellectual property (including copyright material). It is only for the use of the addressee(s) in accordance 
with any instructions contained within it. Please treat any personal and sensitivity data that may be contained within this 
email in accordance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998 (the Act). Such data should only be processed 
and retained where there is a legitimate need to do so. Should you have a legitimate need to share this information please 
make the recipient aware of their responsibilities for handling this data in accordance with the Act. If you are not the 
addressee, you are prohibited from copying, forwarding, disclosing, saving or otherwise using it in any way. If you receive 
this email in error, please immediately advise the sender and delete it. Sopra Steria may monitor the content of emails 
within Welwyn Hatfield Council’s network to ensure compliance with the Council’s policies and procedures. Emails are 
susceptible to alteration and their integrity (including origin) cannot be assured. Welwyn Hatfield Council and Steria shall not 
be liable for any modification to a message, or for messages falsely sent. 
The full Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council email disclaimer can be viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer. 
 --  

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2017/0141/EM
Location: 3 Digswell House Mews Monks Rise Welwyn Garden City AL8 7AT
Proposal: Retention of internal alterations and rooflight
Officer:  Ms R Collard

Recommendation: Refused

6/2017/0141/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The application site is two storey mid-terraced property located within a cluster 
of properties within Digswell House Mews. The property is located to the north 
of the town centre.

The application seeks consent for the retention of a roof light on the front of the 
property.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history None

Consultations
Neighbour 
representations

Support: Object: 4 Other:

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

• We wish to object to the velux window that has been installed in the 
roof of No 3 Digswell House Mews, part of the retrospective planning 
application. It has been poorly executed and interrupts the natural flow 
of the roof, ruining the character of the row of cottages, integral to 
Digswell House Mews. We would prefer the window to go on the back 
of the house where other veluxes already exist. 

• This property is mid terrace in a row of cottages with an old clay tile 
roof. This poorly constructed roof light ruins the flow of the line of the 
roof. The house already has 2 such roof lights to the rear. The mews 
does not have any such lights facing into the communal areas.

• All 4 houses and the 2 houses facing were styled with cottage gardens. 
No3 now has a totally paved over garden. This has been done with 
modern type paving unlike and not in keeping with and lacking the 
charm of the other gardens.

• The effect on my property, in particular the stress and splitting of my loft 
and party wall beams is of great concern. Discussion with me regarding 
this further work to the loft space has never been offered. This damage 
has become apparent since the work commenced on the adjoining 
property. I am concerned that this may result in a weakness in the 
structure of my property.

• We object to this development, most particularly the roof window.

Page 47



2 of 4

• we don’t agree with retrospective planning permission in principle - it
gets abused far too often and it’s easy enough to find out the rules in 
advance. we were told this was a permitted development, it appears 
this isn’t the case

• these are old style cottages so the window doesn’t look right so we 
object to this element of the build strongly. I understand there's 
windows at the back so maybe that’s where it can go maintaining the 
clean lines at the front of the house.

• it has been mentioned that this property might be rented so if this 
increases the occupation capacity of the house this increases pressure 
on already burdened parking and waste collection

• even if it isn’t to be rented the increase in occupation capacity raises 
concerns on the above services 

Consultee 
responses

No comments have been received from Councillors

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 
amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme is relevant and concerns 
extensions and alterations. It seeks to preserve the unique architectural 
heritage of the town and its buildings and only allows extensions and 
alterations if they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and 
architectural detailing used in the existing building and do not have a 
detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the 
residential amenity of adjoining occupiers. 

In order to be able to respond to the large amount of requests for roof 
alterations and energy efficiency measures such as Solar PV panels, following 
public consultation the council has approved a new Policy approach within the 
Welwyn Garden Estate Management Scheme Areas to deal with roof 
alterations and this is as follows:

• Estate Management Consent will only be granted for energy efficiency 
measures and other roof alterations where they are sited on the rear or 
side roof slope and are sited to minimise the effect on the external 
appearance of the building.

• Estate Management Consent will only be granted if the proposed 
alteration, when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point 
does not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance 
of the street scene and the wider amenities and values of the area. 

• Exceptions to this Policy approach will apply where, in the judgement of 
the case officer the architectural design and style of an individual 
property or the wider character of the area means that an alteration on 
a principal roof slope of a property would not have a detrimental impact 
on the character and appearance of the street scene and wider 
amenities and values of the area.

• In all cases the decision maker will continue to weigh the environmental 
benefits for energy efficiency measures against the visual impact.

The roof light would be seen to the front elevation of the building and would be 
clearly visible from within the courtyard area of Digswell House Mews and 

Page 48



3 of 4

clear views would be gained from the public realm within Fern Grove.  It is 
noted that the existing dwelling benefits from two rear facing roof lights and 
No.4 benefits from a multitude of roof lights facing onto Fern Grove together 
with roof lights seen to No’s 7 & 8 Digswell House Mews. It would appear that 
no estate management applications have been received in relation to the 
existing roof lights seen to various properties.

A number of objections have been received in relation to the estate 
management application.  Neighbours consider the proposed roof light has 
been poorly executed and interrupts the roof line of the terraced row of 
cottages. In this instance it is considered that the roof light would disrupt the 
roof line of this terraced row of properties and as such would be out of keeping 
with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the 
existing buildings. Furthermore it is readily visible from the wider public realm, 
although there are already a number of roof lights seen to various properties 
which are clearly visible from Fern Grove, as no approval appears to have 
been granted it is not considered that this sets a precedent for the area. 
Therefore it is considered that the roof light has a detrimental impact on the 
amenity and values of the Estate Management area contrary to Policy EM1.   

Impact on 
neighbours

In relation to the impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers the 
impact is measured in terms of neighbouring properties access to day/sun/sky 
light, overshadowing, loss of privacy/overlooking and impact on outlook.

Giving the design of the proposal it is considered that the proposal would not 
be detrimental to the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers sufficient 
enough to warrant refusal.

Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)

Concerns have been raised regarding the alterations that have been made to 
the front garden. No details have been provided and therefore have not been 
considered as part of this application. However it is considered that Estate 
Management consent is required for alterations to the front garden of the 
property. 

Any other 
considerations 

A number of objections have been received in relation to the estate 
management application. Neighbours consider the proposed roof light has 
been poorly executed and interrupts the roof line of the terraced row of 
cottages. 

Concerns have been raised regarding the construction quality of the 
development and the impact on neighbouring properties.  This is not a 
consideration as part of the estate management scheme and would be a civil 
matter between neighbours. Additionally the increase in capacity at the 
dwelling is not a consideration under the Estate Management Scheme. 

Conclusion
It is considered that the proposed roof light, by reason of its siting, form and design would form an 
incongruous alteration that, when viewed from the surrounding public vantage point would have a 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the street scene and the wider amenities and 
values of the area.

Reasons for Refusal: 

Page 49



4 of 4

1. The siting and appearance of the roof light has an adverse and uncharacteristic 
affect on the front roof slope of the property that disrupts the roof line of the 
terraced row which is otherwise intact.  Given the visibility of the roof slope in the 
wider area it is detrimental to the character and appearance of the application 
property and the wider street scene. The works fail to maintain or enhance the 
values and amenities of Welwyn Garden City contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan Number Revision 

Number
Details Received Date

DHM:02 Existing and Proposed 
Floor Plans

25 January 
2017

I Location Plan 25 January 
2017

DHM:03 Elevations 25 January 
2017

II Block Plan 25 January 
2017

Determined By:

Mr M Robinson
20 March 2017

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Part I 
Executive Member: Councillor M Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEAL PANEL – 24 AUGUST 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2017/0813/EM 

311 KNIGHTSFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7NJ 

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

APPLICANT: Ms R Cantor 

(Sherrards) 

1 Background 

1.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
erection of a single storey rear extension. The application (6/2017/0813/EM) 
was refused for the following reasons:  

           ‘1. The proposed rear extension, would result in an excessive depth of built 
form from the original rear wall of the property which together with existing 
extensions at the property, would fail to remain subordinate in scale to the 
original property. Accordingly, the proposal fails to maintain and preserve the 
amenities and values of the Garden City, contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.                  

           2. By virtue of the substantial depth and height of the proposed extension it 
would appear unduly overbearing to the adjoining property, No. 313 
Knightsfield and would have a detrimental impact on their residential amenity. 
Accordingly, the proposal fails to maintain and preserve the amenities and 
values of the Garden City, contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme.’ 

2 Site Description 

2.1 The appeal site is located on the west side of Knightsfield and comprises of a 
two storey semi- detached dwelling with an attached side garage. The 
property also benefits from an existing single storey extension to the rear 
which forms a play room and a rear conservatory. This extends across only a 
section of the rear of the property. The frontage is set back from the highway 
and includes a hard standing and a hedgerow along the front boundary. 

 
2.2      The immediate street scene is residential in character with properties similar 

in size and design to the host property.   
 

3 The Proposal 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



3.1  The original application sought Estate Management consent for the erection 
of a single storey rear extension following the demolition of the existing 
conservatory. This would infill a gap between the original rear wall and the 
existing extension off the garage. 

4 Relevant Estate Management History 

4.1 W6/2001/1427/EM – Erection of rear conservatory – Granted 17th December 
2001  

 
4.2      It is also noted that the property benefits from a single storey rear extension. It 

is evident that this permission was granted prior to when the Estate 
Management Scheme was imposed in 1973, as a result of a planning 
application submitted in 1972.  

 
5 Policy 

5.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

5.2 EM1 – Extensions and Alterations 

6 Discussion 
 
6.1 This is an appeal against the refusal for Estate Management Consent. The 

appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated 
officer’s report for application 6/2017/0813/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.  

 
6.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact the 

development would have on the amenities and values of the subject property 
and the surrounding area of Welwyn Garden City.   

 
6.3      Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) refers to proposals for 

extensions and alterations, the policy clearly states that extensions and 
alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the 
existing building. The purpose of the Management Scheme and its importance 
to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are kept in 
harmony with the original design and concept of the town. 

 
6.4      The appeal site consists of a two storey semi-detached property with a 

pitched roof with an original single attached garage to the side and a single 
storey rear extension. 

 
6.5      Within the Garden City, single storey rear extensions are characteristically 

designed with flat roofs in order to maintain a consistent design and 
appearance. The extension would feature a flat roof and is therefore 
considered to respect the character and design of the original dwelling and 
would therefore be in keeping with the character of the area. Furthermore, the 
materials are proposed to match those used in the constructed of the original 
dwelling and the fenestration detailing is also considered acceptable. 

Page 58



Accordingly, no objections are raised with the appearance of the rear 
extension. 

 
6.6      The Estate Management Scheme is in place to ensure that the special 

character of the environment is preserved. The majority of extensions that fall 
within the Estate Management Area and granted consent under the Scheme 
are modest in depth. In this instance, the appeal site currently benefits from a 
3 metre deep rear conservatory which would be removed. The proposed 
extension would be located at the rear of the original dwelling where it would 
extend a total depth of 5.9 metres off the original rear wall. This extension 
would extend deep into the rear garden and when compared to the original 
property which measures approximately 7.2 metres in depth, the extension 
would result in a substantial increase in bulk and mass to the original property 
which would fail to appear subordinate in scale. Furthermore, the proposed 
extension would adjoin to an existing extension to the rear of the property. 
The extension would extend a across a significant width of the property and 
garage and would extend deep into the rear garden. Whilst the extension 
would extend the same distance as the existing garage, the extension would 
infill a large area of existing space to the rear of the property. The combined 
extension would be excessive and the cumulative scale of the extension 
would result in substantial form to the rear of the property, which would fail to 
respect the character and appearance of the building and its environment.  

 
6.7      The Estate Management Scheme is important in ensuring that the setting of 

properties with special character are respected and preserved. It is 
considered that the combined built form of the extensions at the appeal 
property would represent poor quality alterations to the building which would 
fail to respect the unique architectural heritage of the original building leading 
to the erosion of the special character of the environment. Subsequently, the 
proposed extensions would represent inappropriate development that would 
impact detrimentally on the values and amenities of the Garden City.  

 
6.8      Policy EM1 outlines that extensions and alterations should not have a 

detrimental impact on the residential amenity of adjoining neighbours through 
loss of day/sun/skylight, loss of privacy and outlook.  

 
6.9      The appellant refers to the fact that no objections were received from 

neighbours during the consultation process. However, it should be noted that 
Officers are required to assess the impact on the residential amenity of 
adjoining occupiers of both current and future occupiers. Whilst it was noted 
that the extension was set in 1 metre from the boundary, as a result of the 
proposed height and depth of 5.9 metres projecting off the rear wall, it is 
considered that the proposed extension would appear excessive and unduly 
dominant which would result in a detrimental impact on the residential amenity 
of the adjoining property of No.313 Knightsfield. It is considered that the 
proposed extension would materially affect the residential amenity of the 
adjoining resident in terms of being overbearing and giving a sense of a more 
enclosed, built environment in terms of outlook to the extent beyond what 
would be reasonable to expect to. The proposal therefore fails to comply with 
Policy EM1. 

Page 59



 
6.10    The appellant makes reference to the Prior Approval Scheme for a Larger 

Householder extension which was granted permission at the appeal site. 
Whilst it is noted by officers that modern day living gives rise to larger 
extensions, particularly as a result of the Government Prior Approval Scheme 
for Larger Householder Extension, it should be noted that the Estate 
Management Scheme is separate to the Town and Country Planning Act and 
therefore is required to be assessed against the relevant policies of the 
scheme. The Estate Management Scheme was set up in recognition of the 
importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in order to protect 
the amenities and values of the Garden City. The purpose of the Estate 
Management Scheme is to ensure that homes and street scenes are kept in 
harmony with the original design and concept of the town. Therefore, under 
the Estate Management Scheme, the proposed extension is contrary to Policy 
EM1. 

 
6.11    The appellant also outlines that the extension would not be visible from the 

streetscene and would therefore have no impact on the wider area. It was 
concluded within the Officers Report that as a result of the rear siting of the 
extension, there would not be a detrimental impact on the amenities and 
values of the streetscene of Knightsfield or surrounding area. However, this 
would not outweigh the harm that would be caused to the appeal property and 
its environment. 

 
7 Conclusion  
 
7.1 The proposed extension combined with the existing extension on the appeal 

site would result in excessive built form from the original rear wall of the 
property which would fail to remain subordinate in scale to the original 
property. As a result, the extension would represent poor quality of design that 
fails to respect and relate to the original property and the special character of 
the environment which it forms. In addition, the extension would appear 
unduly overbearing to the adjoining property of No.313 Knightsfield and would 
therefore have a detrimental impact on their residential amenity. The proposal 
would therefore have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
property and the surrounding area contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

 
8 Recommendation 
 
8.1 That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal. 
 
 
Lucy Hale (Development Management) 
Date: 26 July 2017 
 
Background Information 
Appendix 1: Appellant’s Statement 
Appendix 2: Officer Report 

Page 60



 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2017/0813/EM
Location: 311 Knightsfield Welwyn Garden City AL8 7NJ
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension
Officer:  Ms L Hale

Recommendation: Refused

6/2017/0813/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The application site consists of a two storey semi-detached property with an 
attached side garage located on the west side of Knightsfield. The property is 
set back from the highway and benefits from a driveway to the front.

The application seeks estate management consent for the erection of a single 
storey rear extension following the demolition of the existing conservatory. The 
proposed extension would measure approximately 5.9 metres deep by 5.5 
metres wide with an approximate height of 2.8 metres, set in appropriately 1 
metre from the boundary. The extension would feature a flat roof design and 
matching materials. 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history Application Number: W6/1990/5152/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 18 June 1990
Proposal: Two storey rear extension

Application Number: W6/2001/1427/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 17 December 2001
Proposal: Erection of rear conservatory

Consultations
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

N/A

Consultee 
responses

No responses received. 

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme applies and refers to 
extensions and alterations and seeks to preserve the unique architectural 
heritage of the town and its building. It states that extensions and alterations to 
existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping with the design, 

Page 67



2 of 4

amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing building 
and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
surrounding area.

The application site consists of a two storey semi-detached property with a 
pitched roof and single attached garage to the side. The application seeks 
estate management consent for the erection of a single storey rear extension 
following the demolition of the existing conservatory. 

Within the Garden City, single storey rear extensions are characteristically
designed with flat roofs in order to maintain a consistent design and 
appearance, remaining adequately subordinate in scale to the property. The 
proposed extension would feature a flat roof design which would be of an 
acceptable ridge height, which would respect the character and appearance of 
the dwelling and would be in keeping with the character of the area.

The materials are proposed to match those used in the constructed of the 
original dwelling and the fenestration detailing is also considered acceptable.  
Accordingly, no objections are raised with the appearance of the rear 
extension.

However, with regard to scale, the proposed extension is sizeable and would 
measure approximately 5.9 metres in depth by 5.5 metres in width. The 
extension would almost double the floor space of the original ground floor 
dwelling, resulting in a substantial addition to the dwelling. The proposed size 
and bulk of the addition would not respect or relate to the size of the 
application property and would therefore result in harm to the character and 
appearance of the application property. Furthermore, when considered 
alongside the existing single storey rear extension to which it would attach, 
would result in an excessive extension to the property. Additionally the 
proposed extension would extend the built form significantly into the rear 
garden and whilst it would extend to the same extent as the existing playroom, 
it would infill the entire space to the side of that extension up to the boundary 
resulting in a significant increase to the overall mass and bulk of the dwelling. 

Given the rear siting of the extension, it is noted that the extension would not 
have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of Knightsfield when 
viewed from a public vantage point. However, the harm that is caused by the 
extension is to the application property, which this is not considered to 
outweigh.

It is considered that the proposal, by virtue of its scale and bulk, fails to 
maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City.

Impact on 
neighbours

In relation to the impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers the 
impact is measured in terms of neighbouring properties access to day/sun/sky 
light, overshadowing, loss of privacy/overlooking and impact on outlook.

No representations have been received from either adjoining neighbour. The 
two neighbouring properties are No. 309 and 313 Knightsfield. 

With regard to 309 Knightsfield, this property is located to the south west of the 
host dwelling. The proposed rear extension would infill an area behind the 
garage and playroom. Given the siting behind this part of the property, which 
would not project further in depth, it is not considered to result in any impact on 
the residential amenity of this neighbouring occupier.

With regard to No.313 Knightsfield, this property sits to the north east of the 
property and is attached. It is noted that No.313 does not benefit from a rear 

Page 68



3 of 4

extension. Due to the orientation of that property to the north east, the height 
of the proposed extension, along with the set in of 1 metre from the boundary 
and the existing boundary treatment, it is not considered that there would be 
an undue loss of light to this neighbouring property. However, despite the set 
in of 1 metre, the proposed extension would extend substantially in depth and 
would be visible above the existing boundary hedge. It is therefore considered 
that the extension would appear unduly dominant from No.313 Knightsfield 
which would result in harm to the residential amenity of this adjoining 
neighbour to the extent that would warrant refusal.  

It is not considered that there would be a loss of privacy as a result of the 
extension as no side facing windows are proposed and it would be single 
storey. 

Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)

N/A

Any other 
considerations 

N/A

Conclusion
The proposed rear extension, by virtue of its size and bulk, would fail to reflect the design of the host 
dwelling and present an unduly dominant addition which would detract from the design and 
appearance of the application property. Furthermore, the proposed extension is considered to result 
in a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the adjoining occupier at No.313 Knightsfield.   
Accordingly, the proposal fails to maintain the amenities and values of the Garden City contrary to 
Policy EM1 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposed rear extension, would result in an excessive depth of built form from 
the original rear wall of the property which together with existing extensions at the 
property, would fail to remain subordinate in scale to the original property.  
Accordingly, the proposal fails to maintain and preserve the amenities and values 
of the Garden City, contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

2. By virtue of the substantial depth and height of the proposed extension it would 
appear unduly overbearing to the adjoning property, No. 313 Knightsfield and 
would have a detrimenal impact on their residential amenity.  Accordingly, the 
proposal fails to maintain and preserve the amenities and values of the Garden 
City, contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

3.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

1993-03a Existing & Proposed 
Elevations

20 April 2017

1993-02a Proposed Floor Plans 20 April 2017
1993-01 Existing Floor Plan 20 April 2017
1993-04 Site & Block Plan 20 April 2017

Page 69



4 of 4

Determined By:

Mrs S Smith
15 June 2017

Page 70



Part I 

Executive Member: Councillor M Perkins 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL – 24 August 2017 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2016/2572/EM 

60 KIRKLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 7RD 

FORMATION OF HARDSTANDING 

APPLICANT: Mr J Cunningham 

(Sherrards) 

 

1 Background 

 

1.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 

formation of hardstanding. The application (6/2016/2572/EM) was refused on 

the 27 April 2017 for the following reason: 

“The proposal would result in the partial loss of continuous hedgerow along the 

boundary of properties in this part of Kirklands. The loss of hedgerow would 

adversely affect the appearance of the streetscene and would be detrimental to 

the visual amenities and values of the Welwyn Garden City Estate 

Management Scheme. In this regard the proposal is considered to be contrary 

to Policy EM4 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme.” 

1.2. It is noted that the reason for refusal is principally in regards to the loss of 

hedgerow. The loss of hedgerow over and above the minimum required for 

vehicular access fails to comply with policy EM4 of the Welwyn Garden City 

Estate Management Scheme. Furthermore, the loss of trees or hedgerows 

which harm the character and amenities of the area would not accord with 

policy EM3 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme. It is 

considered that the lack of reference to policy EM3 in the reason for refusal is 

typographic error only, as the reasoning remains clear. 

 

2 Site Description 

2.1. The site contains a two storey mid-terraced dwelling on the north side of 

Kirklands. The properties within the terrace are set back from the road and 

benefit from soft landscaped gardens fronted by a consistent hedgerow, with 

gaps for pedestrian access. There is one on-site parking space on the end 

property to the eastern extent of the terrace. 

2.2. The street scene hosts another terrace of properties opposite the host site, 

which have a shorter frontage on which two of the mid-terraced properties have 

hardstanding for parking. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



3 The Proposal 

3.1. The proposal is for the installation of a hard surface to the front of the dwelling 

measuring 3.5m by 5.5m, alongside the creation of vehicular access involving 

the removal of 3.5m width of hedge. 

4 Estate Management History 

4.1. None. 

5 Policy 

5.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008) 

EM3 – Soft Landscaping 

EM4 – Hard Landscaping. 

6 Representations Received 

6.1. No representations have been received in relation to the appeals process. 

6.2. No representations were received during the determination of the application. 

7 Discussion 

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent. The 

appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s 

report for application referenced 6/2016/2572/EM, is attached at Appendix 2. 

7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the 

landscaping works on the amenities and values of the surrounding area. 

7.3. Hard landscaping is considered to maintain the amenities and values of the 

street scene in which it is located where the balance between hard and soft 

landscaping is considered sufficiently appropriate.  

7.4. The Council aims to ensure that a significant proportion, around 50%, is 

retained as landscaped ‘greenery’ to retain the appearance and ethos of the 

Garden City, unless individual circumstances indicate that this would not be 

appropriate. 

7.5. In regards to soft landscaping, works to hedgerows will only be allowed where 

the works would not result in the loss of landscaping which would harm the 

character and amenities of the area and where sufficient justification for the 

works has been given or there are other considerations that apply. The 

complete removal of hedgerows will rarely be consented without sound 

justification and mitigation, usually in the form of replacement landscaping. 

7.6. The existing frontage contains exclusively landscaped greenery. This is 

consistent within the terrace of dwellings in which the appeal property is 

contained, with the exception of the end of terrace property to the eastern 

extent.  

Page 72



7.7. Whilst the proposal would retain in excess of the 50% landscaped greenery 

aimed for within policy EM4. The proportion of hard surfacing was not objected 

to within the reason for refusal, and therefore the proportion of hard surfacing 

proposed is considered acceptable. The principle objection to the proposed 

landscaping works was, and remains, the extent of hedgerow removal 

proposed and the impact of the hedgerow removal on the values and amenities 

of the street scene.  

7.8. The appellant’s statement makes reference to on-street parking issues along 

Kirklands. The letter details the presence of the primary school within the street 

as one of the causes of the parking issues, alongside parking pressures from 

residents within the street. Additionally, it outlines that several of the local 

neighbours have no objection to the request for the driveway. 

7.9. Furthermore, the appellant states that he wishes to purchase an electric 

vehicle, which will require the car to be parks on-site in order to charge. The 

appellant also refutes the impact of the hedgerow removal and hardstanding on 

the street, with examples available of breaks in hedgerow on both sides of the 

street. 

7.10. The appellant’s grounds in regards to parking issues refers to lack of parking 

provision throughout the day and night, by reference to other residents as well 

as staff for the local primary school and pick-up/drop-off times. Whilst the 

proximity to the primary school is acknowledged, the parking issues arising 

from the proximity to the school would be intermittent throughout the day. 

7.11. The issues of on-street parking resultant from other residents in the area is 

common to most areas in Welwyn Garden City, and thereby is not considered 

to outweigh the harm to the values and amenities of the area resultant from the 

proposed works. 

7.12. Lack of neighbour objection has no mitigating impact on the amenities and 

values of street scene. It is not considered that the provision of a driveway and 

hardstanding for one on-site parking space would relieve all danger resultant 

from the existing parking issues within the street. 

7.13. The will to purchase and charge an electric car on site is acknowledged and 

commendable, however, again, this consideration has no mitigating impact on 

the harm to the street scene. 

7.14. The existing street scene, and breaks in the hedging in the immediate area 

informed the original decision. The appellant’s grounds that there are several 

breaks in the hedgerow on both sides of the street does not alter the 

professional opinion, as the circumstances of the street scene were taken into 

account in the original decision. 

7.15. It is noted that within the appeal statement, the appellant has suggested a 

reduction in the hedge removal to 2.5m in width, as well as the installation of 

hedging around the edge of the proposed hard surfacing. 

Page 73



7.16. As the principle objection in this case was the extent of hedgerow removal and 

the impact on the street scene, it is considered that a reduction in the amount of 

hedgerow removal would move the proposal to more policy compliant 

landscaping works. Notwithstanding this suggestion, this appeal is for the 

proposal as it stood at the time of the application. No assessment has taken 

place as to the acceptability of further, amended schemes. An informative 

should be added to the recommendation to suggest further contact with the 

planning team post-appeal in order to continue positive discussions regarding 

amendments to the proposed landscaping works. 

8 Conclusion 

8.1. No additional evidence or information has been put forward in the appellant’s 

statement which adds to or would alter the recommendation and decision in this 

appeal. When assessing whether any harm would result from the balance of 

hard and soft landscaping retained, as well as the removal of any hedgerow 

screening, full consideration is given to the existing condition of the street 

scene. In this case, the giving of consent for loss of front facing hedgerow 

would cause harm to the values and amenities of the street scene. Accordingly, 

the landscaping works proposed fails to accord with policies EM3 and EM4 of 

the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme. 

9 Recommendation 

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal, with 

the addition of the following informatives – 

1. The suggestion of a reduction in the amount of hedgerow removal is 

considered worthy of further discussion. It is recommended that the 

applicant contact the planning team in order to continue negotiations to try 

to create a proposal that better meets the aims, purposes and policies within 

the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme. 

2. Due to the topography of the site, and the requirement for the hard surfacing 

to be raised above the natural ground level, it is considered that the 

proposed development may require planning permission and the applicant 

is advised to seek confirmation of this from the planning department. 

Sam Dicocco, (Development Management Officer) 

Date: 09 August 2017 

Background papers: 

Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal 

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report 

Page 74



 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Mr John Cunningham 
         60 Kirklands  
         Welwyn Garden City 
         Hertforshire 
         AL8 7RD 
 
         13th July 2017 
 
Dear Mr Haigh 

Thank you for your letter dated 23rd March 2017 outlining your reasons for the refusal of 

(application No 6/2016/2572/E) formation of hardstanding.  I would like to express my 

disappointment in your decision to refuse my application and put forward my views.   

As a resident in Kirklands, I find it almost impossible to park during the day and  over night. This is 

due to residents from Knightsfield and staff from the local primary school taking up valuable parking 

spaces. As a result leaving me no choice but to park up at the local shops in the Shoplands car park. 

There is also an ongoing issue during school drop off in the morning between 8:30 am and 9:10am, 

11:45 -12:15 lunchtime, and after  school pick up btween 3:00pm and 3:30. There are always cars 

parked along the grass verge infont of the residents houses in the street. This problem  is not only 

inconsiderate to the people who live in the street, but it is also a danger to children/school children 

crossing the road.  

I recently visited serveral of my local neighbours to ask if they had any objections to my request of a 

driveway.  Each one of them were in favourof me having a driveway stating that by having a 

driveway would make the road much safer a other cars would no longer be able to park up on the 

verge, therefore,  reducing any risk of danger.  

I am also considering buying an electric powered car.  in order for this, I  would need off road parking 

with a charging point.  Without my driveway way, a private space to park outside my property, I will 

be unable to charge my car.  Electric powered cars are becoming increasingly popular are  

enviromentally friendly which I am all in favour for. 

I am writing to ask you to re consider your decision. I appreciate how you want to preserve the 

hedgerow within the street.  I have made some observations and see that several breaks in the 

hedgerow on both sides of the  street,  taken from other private driveways as well as the 

surrounding school area.  If you granted me the consent, I would reduce the loss of hedge from 3.5m 

to 2.5m and plant a new hedge to suite all around the driveway of approximately 9m. 

I have spoken to Harry Bowen my local Sherrard Ward Councillor who has agreed to take my 

comments on board. 

I thank you for your time and attention regarding my application and lookward to hearing from you 

in due course. 

Kind Regards, 

 Mr John Cunningham 

Page 77



 

 

 

Page 78



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE 
 

DELEGATED APPLICATION 
 
 
Application No:  6/2016/2572/EM   
Location:  60 Kirklands Welwyn Garden City AL8 7RD 
Proposal:  Formation of hardstanding 
Officer:    Ms F Nwanze 
 
Recommendation: Refused 
 
6/2016/2572/EM  

Context 

Site and 
Application 
description 

The application site is a two storey brick faced mid terrace dwelling on the north 
side of Kirklands, Welwyn Garden City.  
 
The properties are setback from the road and benefit from soft landscaped front 
gardens, bound with hedgerows to the front and side boundaries.  
 
Access paths are present allowing access to the dwellings. No.54 Kirklands 
benefits from one off street vehicle park. Opposite the application site is a 
similar style terrace development which all benefit from hardstand vehicle 
parking.  
 
The proposal is for a hard surface slab measuring approximately 3.5m by 5.5m 
and creating an approximate surface area of 19m2. The proposal includes the 
removal of approximately 3.5m of hedgerow to allow access.  
 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967 

Relevant history None. 

Consultations 

Neighbour 
responses 

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0 

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses 

 No responses have been received. 

Relevant Policies 

 EM1   EM2   EM3 
Others       EM4   

Considerations 

Does the design (form, size, scale, siting) and character (appearance within the streetscene) 
maintain and/or enhance the amenities and values of the area? 

 Yes  No  N/A 
Comment (if required):   See below.   

Does the development minimise impact on neighbours? 

 Yes  No  N/A 
Comment (if required): See below.    

Vehicle Hardstandings Only.  Sections (a) and (b) completed only if hardstanding proposed 

Page 79



(a) Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?   

 Yes  No  
Comment (if required):   See below    

(b) Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.) 

  Yes   No  N/A 
Comment (if required):     However this would be to the detriment of the streetscene as the 
hedgerow is a prominent feature in this terrace.    

Any other considerations  

 It is noted that there are other hardstandings within the vicinity of the site. However each case must 
be considered on its individual merits. In this instance the proposed development would lead to the 
break-up of a prominent hedgerow which borders the frontage of gardens between 56 and 64 
Kirklands. This unbroken hedgerow which is noticeable when approaching Kirklands from 
Knightsfield is considered to enhance the appearance of the streetscene and Welwyn Garden City 
Estate Management Area. It is noted that the proposal seeks only to remove 3.5 metres of 
hedgerow; nevertheless it is considered that even this partial removal in order to create a 
hardstanding would be harmful to the existence and prominence of this hedge within the street 
scene. In this regard it is considered that the proposal would be harmful to the visual amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers and to the amenities of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management 
Scheme.. 

Conclusion 

For the above mentioned reasons, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy EM4 of the 
Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme. It is therefore recommended that Estate 
Management Consent be REFUSED. 

  
 
Reasons for Refusal:  
 
1. The proposal would result in the partial loss of continuous hedgerow along the 

boundary of properties in this part of Kirklands. The loss of hedgerow would adversely 
affect the appearance of the streetscene and would be detrimental to the visual 
amenities and values of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme. In this 
regard the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy EM4 of the Welwyn Garden 
City Estate Management Scheme. 

 
  
REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS 
 
 

Plan Number Revision 
Number 

Details Received Date 

  Location Plan 9 January 2017 
Proposed 2  Proposed Landscape Plan 9 January 2017 
Existing 1  Existing Landscape Plan 9 January 2017 

 
 
 
Determined By: 
 
Mrs L Hughes   23 March 2017 
 

Page 80



Part I 
Main author: Bright Owusu 
Executive Member: Councillor  
M Perkins 
 
Haldens, Handside, Hollybush, 
Howlands, Panshanger, Peartree 
and Sherrards Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME APPEAL PANEL – 24 AUGUST 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

UPDATE ON PROGRESS WITH ARBITRATION CASES 

 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report is to update Panel Members with regard to the arbitration cases 
that were put before the Panel on 15h June 2017.  

1.2 A brief update on each property can be found in section 3 below.  

1.3 Additional cases will be presented at the next Panel meeting 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That Members: 

 note the contents of the report; and 

 agree for further case(s) to be presented to the next Panel meeting for 
Member’s consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



 

3 Individual Cases 

3.1 73 Walnut Grove  

 
 
Nature and date of breach: Formation of hardstanding in front garden, date 
unknown but reported in June 2012.  

Background information: A 100% concrete hardstanding has been formed 
in the front garden.  Although it is not entirely clear when the work was 
completed, the request for investigation was received in June 2012.  
 
Update: A retrospective application 6/2016/1536/EM for the retention of an 
amended scheme of hardstanding was approved on 20/03/2017 with a 
condition that the approved scheme be implemented within 6 months of 
approval. The Enforcement team will monitor implementation with a view to 
recommend the case for closure on satisfactory implementation 

The Panel will be updated at the October 2017 Panel meeting. 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

3.2 26 The Croft  

 

  
Nature and date of breach: Formation of hardstanding in front garden, date 
unknown. 

Background information: A 100% concrete hardstanding has been formed 
in the front garden.  Although it is not entirely clear when the work was 
completed, the request for investigation was received in February 2013. 
  
Update: The registered owner has recently contacted the Council claiming to 
have only recently received our letters on his return to the country. He has 
opted for a retrospective application to retain at least part of the hadstanding. 
An application form and links to information about the Scheme and how to 
apply for permission have been e-mailed to him. No application has been 
submitted to date. 

On 1st August 2017, the owner was contacted to chase the proposed 
retrospective application. He claimed an application has been submitted on 
his behalf. However on checking records there was no sign of the said 
application. 

Given that no efforts towards voluntary remediation has been forthcoming a 
letter is being sent to the owner to invite him to participate in the arbitration 
process. 

Page 83



 

 

 

 

 

3.3 251 Knightsfield  

 

Nature and date of breach: Erection of single storey rear extension without 
Estate Management Consent; commenced June 2013.   

Background information: Officers attended the site at an early stage of 
construction and advised the owner of the need for EM consent for the 
extension.  At that stage footings had only been dug.  However the owner 
chose to continue with the construction.  A retrospective application for EM 
consent was submitted in June 2013 under application number 
W6/2013/1237/EM but the building was not constructed in accordance with 
the submitted plans.  The application was, in any event, refused consent in 
October 2014.  
 
Update: As reported at the last EM Panel, an Estate Management application 
(reference 6/2016/1303/EM) was refused for “Retention of existing single 
storey rear extension with alterations to existing parapet” in October 2016.  

To date no appeal has been received against the decision to refuse Estate 
Management consent.  

Page 84



Authorisation has been granted at the June meeting of the Panel for the Head 
of Planning to refer the matter to be determined by an arbitrator appointed by 
the President of the Royal Institute of Charted Surveyors in accordance with 
paragraph 8 of the Management Scheme for Welwyn Garden City.  

A letter is being sent to the owner inviting them to participate in the arbitration 
process to resolve the breach. The Panel will be updated on the reaction at 
the next panel meeting in October. 

  

Page 85



3.4 31 Sandpit Road  

Before: 

 

After:  

 

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and creation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in January 2014. 

Page 86



Background Information: The established hedges to the front of the above 
site were removed and the complete front garden has been turned into a 
hardstanding without Estate Management Consent. There are no other such 
examples of significant hardstandings within the area in which front hedges 
predominate the streetscene. A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2014/0888/EM, which was refused 
on 30th July 2014. 

The owner has since returned part of the front garden to soft landscape. 
Panel members were satisfied with the implemented soft landscaping but 
requested further information regarding the type of soft landscaping that had 
been planted along the front boundary. A landscape officer has since 
assessed the site and considers that the planting along the front boundary is 
ornamental shrubs, probably quite small and with a neat form. 

Update: Following clarification on the nature of soft landscaping implemented 
at the sites and in particular along the front boundary. Members expressed 
dissatisfaction with the front boundary treatment and have insisted that a 
more suitable hedge would be required for the front boundary treatment and 
were therefore of the view that the case be kept open until a suitable hedge is 
planted, following which the case can be closed. 

The owner has been contacted with regards to the requirement for front 
hedge to be reinstated. Currently awaiting compliance with the requirement. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



3.5 72 Chequers 

 

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and creation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in August 2012. 

Background information: The established hedges to the front of the above 
site were removed and the complete front garden has been turned into a 
hardstanding without Estate Management Consent.  There are no other such 
examples of significant hardstandings within the area in which front hedges 
predominate the streetscene. A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2012/1899/EM, which was refused 
on 18th December 2012.  

A letter was sent to the owner on 27th July 2016 and a response was received 
on 10th August 2016 explaining why the work had been carried out. The owner 
stated that she works from home and due to on-street parking pressure due to 
Burrowfelds Industrial Estate and the rise in car ownership in recent years, the 
hardstanding provides a parking area.  

Update: This case was approved to be taken to arbitration as a test case for 
hardstanding in place 26 the Croft. However following an invitation to the 
owner to participate in arbitration process. The owner has decided to 
negotiate a solution with the Council. A meeting is being set up to discuss 
terms. Date suggestions by officer has been turned down as all parties were 
not available. Currently awaiting the alternative dates on the return of the 
mediating Councillor Nick Pace from holidays. 

The panel will be updated on the outcome of the meeting(s) at the next panel 
meeting. 

Page 88



3.6 176 Heronswood Road  

 

 

 

  

Page 89



Nature and date of breach: The removal of a chimney and its stack without 
consent and the patching of the roof using different coloured tiles; February 
2014 

Background Information: The site comprises one of a pair of semi-detached 
dwellings which were designed with three chimney stacks; a central shared 
stack and one set slightly in from either side of the block.  The block is one of 
a number of similar blocks in this design led area of Welwyn Garden City and 
the removal of the chimney stack has led to a jarring imbalance in the pair of 
houses. 
 
Update: Estate Management application (reference 6/2016/2530/EM) was 
approved on 19th January 2017 for the erection of a cosmetic chimney. The 
Enforcement Team will monitor to ensure replacement chimney is 
implemented. 
 

  

Page 90



3.7 19 Fearnley Road  

 

 

Nature and date of breach: extension to driveway to form 100% 
hardstanding in front garden and the removal of front boundary hedge; date of 
breach unknown but reported in April 2016. 

Background information: There used to be hardstanding with space for one 
vehicle and the remaining area was soft landscaping. A retrospective 
application for EM consent was submitted under application number 
6/2016/1603/EM, which was refused on 28th September 2016. An appeal was 
heard by the Panel on 26th January 2017 where the decision was upheld and 
appeal dismissed. 

Update: The applicant has tentatively agreed a modified scheme comprising 
of approximately 47% soft landscaping to be submitted to the council for 
consideration. The necessary drawings are being prepared for submission. 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



3.8 38 Furzefield Road  

 

Nature and date of breach: Formation of hardstanding and removal of 
hedge; date of breach unknown however an Estate Management application 
was submitted in April 2014 and an enforcement case opened in June 2014. 

Background information: In 2008 there used to be no hardstanding as there 
were hedges on each front boundary. A retrospective application for EM 
consent was submitted under application number W6/2014/0937/EM for the 
retention of vehicle crossover and hardstanding, which was approved on 23rd 
April 2015. Due to the work already having been carried out, a condition was 
included on the decision stating that a discharge of condition application in 
regards to soft landscaping needed to be submitted within two months of the 
date of decision. The discharge of condition was submitted on 1st July 2015 
and following discussions with the owner, the decision was issued on 17th 
February 2016 stating that the proposed soft landscaping was approved. To 
date the soft landscaping has not been implemented despite requests from 
the enforcement team. The owner advised on 10th May 2016 that the work 
would be carried out by 20th June 2016 however the work has not been 
carried out. 

Page 92



Update: The Estate Management application did not specify a period by 
which the owner is required to undertake the soft landscaping other than to 
complete the development within 3 years of the decision date.  It is therefore 
proposed to monitor the site to ensure that the landscaping is completed as 
approved within this timeframe.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 93



3.9 56 Broomhills 

 

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and formation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in February 2016. 

Background information: A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2015/0739/EM but was refused on 5th 
May 2017.  A subsequent appeal was heard by the Panel on 15th June 2017 
where the decision was upheld and appeal dismissed. 

Update: The applicant was advised to modify the scheme to include 
reinstating the front hedge. Enforcement officer is currently in contact with the 
applicant with a view to speed up submission of a revised scheme for 
consideration by the Council. 

 

 

4 Equality and Diversity 

4.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out 
in connection with the proposals that are set out in this report. 

 
Name of author Bright Owusu  
Title Principal Planning Enforcement Officer 
Date 15th August 2017 
 

Page 94


	Agenda
	7 47 BROOMHILLS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 1RE - 6/2017/0492/EM - ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION
	Appellant Appeal Statement - APP 1
	Existing Plans = app1 B1
	Proposed Plans - App 1 B2
	Proposed Block Plan - pp1 B3
	Existing and Proposed Rear Elevations - app1 B4
	Photographs
	Officers Report 15 0083 EM - after plans
	Officers Report 17 2259 EM - after plans
	Officers Report - APP 2

	8 3 DIGSWELL HOUSE MEWS, MONKS RISE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7AT - 6/2017/0141/EM - RETENTION OF INTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND ROOF LIGHT
	Appendix 1 - Appeal Statement - Appellant
	Appendix 2 - Officer Report
	Appendix 3 - 1985 Planning Permission and Plans

	9 311 KNIGHTSFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7NJ - 6/2017/0813/EM -  ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION
	Appendix 1 - Appeal Statement
	Appendix 2 - Officer Report

	10 60 KIRKLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 7RD - 6/2016/2572/EM - FORMATION OF HARDSTANDING
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	11 UPDATE ON PROGRESS WITH ARBITRATION CASES



